
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Board of Directors 
April Chan | Luz Gòmez | Ann Marie Johnson | Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold  

 

  
       

     Board of Directors 
 

AGENDA 
 
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 
TIME:  6 p.m.         DATE:  Monday, July 1, 2024  
PLACE:   Dublin San Ramon Services District  

Boardroom 
7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 
www.derwa.org 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES 
            
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Meeting Open to the Public)    

At this time, those in the audience are encouraged to address the Board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board and not already included on tonight’s agenda. Comments should not exceed five minutes. Speaker cards are 
available from the Authority Secretary and should be completed and returned to the Authority Secretary prior to addressing the 
Board.  The Chair of the Board will recognize each speaker, at which time the speaker should proceed to the lectern, introduce 
him/herself, and then proceed with his/her comment. Written comments may be submitted to the Authority Secretary at 
genzale@dsrsd.com. Comments received by 3 p.m. on the day of the meeting will be provided to the Board. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR               
Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one action in the form listed below. There will be 
no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Member of the Board or the public prior to the time the Board 
votes on the Motion to adopt. 
 
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of April 22, 2024 

Recommended Action: Approve by Motion 
 

7. BOARD BUSINESS 
        

A.        Authorize Authority Manager to Negotiate and Execute the Second Amendment to the Interim  
Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water Between DERWA, Dublin San Ramon    
Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Recommended Action: Authorize by Resolution 

 
 

 
Our mission is to maximize the amount of recycled water delivered while recovering its costs; in doing so it will provide a 

reliable and consistent supply of recycled water to DSRSD and EBMUD for service to each of the agencies' customers. 

http://www.derwa.org/
mailto:genzale@dsrsd.com


DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority                                Board of Directors 
Agenda, Special Meeting, Monday, July 1, 2024    Page 2 

 
 

 
 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Confirm Next Board Meeting – September 23, 2024 
 

9.           BOARDMEMBER ITEMS 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 As Authorized Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: 
 Public Employment 
 Position:  Authority Manager 
 
 11. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 12.     ADJOURNMENT     
 
 
All materials made available or distributed in open session at Board meetings are public information and are available for inspection during business 
hours by calling the Authority Secretary at (925) 828-0515. A fee may be charged for copies. District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the Authority Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting.  



  Item 6.A 
 

  DRAFT 

DSRSD●EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
(DERWA) 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, April 22, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Vonheeder-Leopold called the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority 

(DERWA) meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  
 
3. ROLL CALL – Directors present: Chair Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Vice Chair April Chan, and Director 

Ann Marie Johnson. Staff present: Richard Sykes, Authority Manager; Jacqueline Lee, Treasurer; Austin 
Cho, General Counsel; and Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 

 
Director Marguerite Young was absent. 
 

4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES 
        
       The Board took Item 7.A early under Item 4.  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – 6:19 p.m. –  None 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Director Johnson MOVED for approval of the items on the Consent Calendar. Vice Chair Chan 
SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with THREE AYES and ONE ABSENT (Young). 
 
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of February 5, 2024 – Approved 

 
B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for January 31, and February 29, 2024 – Approved 

 
C. Approve Quarterly Investment Report for March 31, 2024 – Approved 

 
7. BOARD BUSINESS 
 

Item 7.A. was held under Item 4. 
 

A. Approve Proclamation for Former Director John A. Coleman’s Service on the DERWA Board of 
Directors 

 
Chair Vonheeder-Leopold introduced the item and read aloud from the proclamation. 

 
Vice Chair Chan MOVED to Approve the Proclamation for Former Director Coleman’s Service on 
the DERWA Board of Directors.  Director Johnson SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with 
THREE AYES and ONE ABSENT (Young). 

 
Chair Vonheeder-Leopold presented the proclamation and an engraved compass to former 
Director Coleman. The Board and staff shared stories of working together and thanked him for 
his many steady years of service. Mr. Coleman addressed the Board and reflected on DERWA’s 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  April 22, 2024 
 
 

  2 DRAFT 

history during his tenure on the Board. Newly appointed EBMUD Director Luz Gomez (Ward 2), 
retired EBMUD Customer and Community Services Manager Rebecca Lamoreaux, and Zone 7 
Director Dawn Benson also congratulated Mr. Coleman. 
 

B. Approve and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Operating and Capital Budget 
 

Authority Manager Sykes reviewed the item for the Board and gave a presentation (handed out 
to the Board) that was added to the website as supplemental materials. The presentation 
provided a summary of the annual administration, operations, debt service, and capital budget 
categories, a look back at 2020-2024 budgets and actuals, anticipated increases due to energy, 
labor, backwash, and asset replacement, and the partner agency cost-share (DSRSD 67%, 
EBMUD 33%). No new capital projects are included in the proposed budget. Mr. Sykes 
confirmed DERWA will see an increase in revenue collected due to the increases charged in 
operating costs. 
 
Director Johnson MOVED to Approve Resolution No. 24-3, Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Operating and Capital Budget. Vice Chair Chan SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with 
THREE AYES and ONE ABSENT (Young). 
 

C. Approve the First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement for DSRSD●EMBUD Recycled Water 
Authority (“DERWA”) Interim Authority Manager Services with Richard G. Sykes 

 
Vice Chair Chan MOVED to Approve the First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement for 
DERWA Interim Authority Manager Services with Richard G. Sykes. Director Johnson SECONDED 
the MOTION, which CARRIED with THREE AYES and ONE ABSENT (Young). 
 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Authority Manager Update 
 
              Authority Manager Sykes reported that he recently took a tour of DSRSD’s recycled water plant 

facilities and stated how impressed he is with DSRSD’s operations and staff. 
 

B. Discuss Special Board Meeting  
 

Authority Manager Sykes advised the Board that staff will look to schedule a special Board 
meeting in the June timeframe.  
 

9.     BOARDMEMBER ITEMS – None 
 
10.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
        At 6:30 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. 
 
       As Authorized Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: 
       Public Employment 
       Position:  Authority Manager 
 
 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  April 22, 2024 
 
 

  3 DRAFT 

 
11.  REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
        At 7:26 p.m. the Board came out of Closed Session. 
 
        General Counsel Cho announced that the Board took the following actions: 

• Formed an Authority Manager Recruitment Ad-Hoc Committee and appointed Directors 
Chan and Johnson as the Committee representatives. 

• Authorized staff to retain a recruitment firm for the Authority Manager recruitment 
with a not-to-exceed expenditure of $30,000. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Vonheeder-Leopold adjourned the meeting at 7:27 p.m.  
 
 

Submitted by,  
 

Nicole M. Genzale, CMC 
Authority Secretary 



Item 7.A 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Authorize Authority Manager to Negotiate and Execute the Second Amendment to the 

Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and  
Sale of Recycled Water Between DERWA, Dublin San Ramon Services District, and  

East Bay Municipal Utility District 
 

 
Summary: 
 
On March 29, 2022, DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA), East Bay Municipal 
Utility District (EBMUD), and Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD) executed an Interim 
Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water (“Interim Agreement”).  The 
Interim Agreement formalizes the 2019 recycled water connection moratorium and provides a 
framework for DERWA and its Member Agencies to focus near-term efforts on evaluating 
strategies for DERWA to reliably meet current and future recycled water demands.  Without 
additional long-term supplemental supplies, the amount of wastewater available will be 
insufficient to meet the buildout demands for the DERWA program.   
 
In early 2023, DERWA initiated preparation of a Recycled Water Supply Management Plan 
(Supply Plan). The Supply Plan incorporates new and refined information on supply and 
demand to create a roadmap for implementing demand management and supply strategies.  
The results of this study were presented at the September and December 2023 DERWA Board 
meetings.  Input from the Board was incorporated into the final Supply Plan that was completed 
in March 2024.   
 
The Supply Plan identifies that even if the moratorium were lifted today, each Member Agency 
only has a few customers that could be connected to the recycled water system. The majority of 
future DERWA recycled water customers are located within EBMUD’s service area, and 
reaching these customers would require significant new infrastructure, which could take five to 
ten years to design and construct.  EBMUD would need assurances that adequate supply is 
available to serve these future phases before making the investment. 
 
Based on the Supply Plan recommendations and supply available near-term, DERWA, EBMUD, 
and DSRSD, are currently in discussions to amend Section III. Connection Moratorium of the 
Interim Agreement to allow the Member Agencies to add certain “Ready to Connect” customers 
to the recycled water system (“Second Amendment”). These customers are shown in Resolution 
No. 24-4, Exhibit A. The terms of the Second Amendment would include the following: 
 

• EBMUD recycled water customer connections – EBMUD customers shown in Resolution 
No. 24-4, Exhibit A, would be allowed to connect to the recycled water system when 
ready. No additional conditions would apply.  The total maximum day demand is 
estimated at 0.041 MGD (million gallons per day) and would have no noticeable impact 
on supply. 
 

• DSRSD recycled water customer connections – DSRSD would be allowed to connect 
two City of Dublin sites, the Dublin Sports Grounds and Butterfly Knoll Park, to the 
recycled water system.  These two sites have a total estimated maximum day demand of 
0.12 MGD.  DSRSD would be required to agree to several conditions prior to connecting 
these sites. These conditions include: 

http://srvrwp.org/pdf/20240306-supp-recycled-water-supply.pdf


Prepared by CF        Reviewed by RGS 
 

 
o Ensuring no adverse impacts to existing DERWA customers including sites 

where recycled water retrofits are in progress (i.e., Crow Canyon Country Club); 
 

o Taking immediate corrective action to remedy a supply deficiency if caused by 
the addition of the two added sites; and 
 

o Execution of an agreement with the City of Dublin prior to connecting the sites, 
which requires Dublin to offset the added demand through implementation of 
water efficiency measures. 

 
The Supply Plan recommended that DERWA and the Member Agencies explore implementing 
recycled water budgets for the cities of San Ramon and Dublin as a potential incentive for 
implementing water use efficiency measures.  The water savings could potentially be 
reallocated to new sites.  In 2023, with DSRSD’s assistance, the City of Dublin (City) secured a 
grant for smart irrigation controllers.  The City is currently embarking on a project to install these 
new controllers at sites that use recycled water and is interested in being a pilot case for the 
recycled water budget concept.  Based on conservate estimates, the City anticipates being able 
to offset the added demand from the two “ready to connect” sites through increased water use 
efficiency at existing recycled water sites. 
 
On July 1, the Authority Manager will provide a presentation on the proposed “ready to connect” 
customers and request authorization from the Board to negotiate and execute the Second 
Amendment to the Interim Agreement with EBMUD and DSRSD. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the Board of Directors authorize, by Resolution No. 24-4, 
the Authority Manager to negotiate and execute the Second Amendment to the Interim 
Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water between DSRSD●EBMUD 
Recycled Water Authority, Dublin San Ramon Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility 
District. 
 
 
 
July 1, 2024 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. 2022 Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water  
2. DERWA Resolution No. 24-4 
3. PowerPoint Presentation 



42...2....-C)/ 
DocuSign Envelope ID: 41AC880C-4789-4534-A251-37D94D856087 

INTERIM AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE SUPPLY AND SALE OF RECYCLED 

WATER BETWEEN THE DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT/EAST BAY 

MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY ("DERW A"), 

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT, AND 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

This Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water between the Dublin 
San Ramon Services District - ,East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority 
("DERWA"), Dublin San Ramon Services District ("DSRSD"), and East Bay Municipal Utility 
District ("EBMUD") ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 29th day of March 2022. 
DERW A, DSRSD, and EB MUD are individually referred to as "Party," and collectively as 
"Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 1995, as amended on December 21, 1995, DSRSD and 
EBMUD entered into an agreement to form DER WA, a Joint Powers Authority in Alameda and 
Contra Costa County, for the purpose of implementing a program ("DERW A Program") to 
provide recycled water to DSRSD and EB MUD, as Member Agencies of DER WA, for their 
distribution within portions of their respective existing and future service areas, while recovering 
DERWA's costs ("1995 JPA Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2003, the Parties entered into the Agreement for the Sale of 
Recycled Water ("Sales Agreement") and Water Supply Agreement, setting forth the terms and 
conditions for the supply and sale of recycled water between DER WA and the Member 
Agencies; and 

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2005, the Parties entered into the Operations Agreement setting 
forth the conditions under which DSRSD agreed to operate and maintain the DER WA Program 
Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the 1995 JPA Agreement, Water Supply Agreement, Sales Agreement, and 
Operations Agreement shall be collectively referred to in this Agreement as the "DERWA 
Agreements"; and 

WHEREAS, other agreements related to the implementation of the DERWA Program 
have been executed over the last 25 years including, but not limited, to the Agreement to Provide 
Recycled Water Treatment and Delivery Services between DER WA and the City of Pleasanton 
dated January 7, 2014, which expanded the DERWA Program to include deliveries to the City of 
Pleasanton; and 

{00070493;10} 1794457vl 

Attachment 1





























  Attachment 2 

  1 
 

DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-4 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD●EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE AUTHORITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE INTERIM AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE 
SUPPLY AND SALE OF RECYCLED WATER BETWEEN THE DUBLIN SAN RAMON 
SERVICES DISTRICT●EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT RECYCLED WATER 
AUTHORITY, DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT, AND EAST BAY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT 
  

 WHEREAS, Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD), East Bay Municipal Utility 

District (EBMUD), and the DSRSD-EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) are parties to 

an Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water (“Interim Agreement”), 

which Interim Agreement was entered into on March 28, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, the Interim Agreement addresses near-term issues, establishes a process 

for implementing demand management measures and allocating recycled water shortages, 

formalizes the connection moratorium to the recycled water system and articulates concepts 

that the parties have identified for inclusion in future negotiations regarding the various DERWA 

agreements that relate to the supply and sale of recycled water for the DERWA Program; and 

 WHEREAS, DERWA completed a Recycled Water Supply Plan in March 2024, which 

identified certain customer sites that could be served by existing infrastructure and are shown in 

Exhibit “A” as “Ready to Connect” customers; and 

 WHEREAS, DERWA, EBMUD, and DSRSD desire to amend the Interim Agreement to 

allow EBMUD and DSRSD to add the “Ready to Connect” customers listed in the table in 

Exhibit “A” to the recycled water subject to mutually agreeable terms and conditions. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DSRSD●EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY, a public agency located in the counties of 

Alameda and Contra Costa, California, that the Authority Manager is hereby authorized to 

negotiate and execute for and on behalf of the DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water Authority the 

Second Amendment to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled 

Water Between the Dublin San Ramon Services District●East Bay Municipal Utility District 

Recycled Water Authority, Dublin San Ramon Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility 

District, which would amend Section III. Connection Moratorium to allow EBMUD and DSRSD to 

add the “Ready to Connect” customers, listed in the table in Exhibit “A,” to the recycled water 

system, subject to mutually agreeable terms and conditions, and in a form approved by legal 

counsel. 



DERWA 
Res. No. 24-4 
 
 

2 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a public agency located in the counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its Special 

Meeting held on the 1st day of July 2024, and passed by the following vote: 

 

 
AYES: 
   
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
 

     _____________________________ 
     Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold,  

DERWA Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 
 



Exhibit A 

Proposed EBMUD and DSRSD “Ready to Connect” Recycled Water Customers 

 

Member 
Agency Customer Site Owner 

Estimated 
Connection 
Schedule 

Estimated  
Average Demand 

(MGD) 

Estimated  
Max Day Demand 

(MGD) 

EBMUD Aspenwood 
Apartments Private 2025 0.000 0.001 

EBMUD Belmont Village 
Senior Home Private 2025 0.001 0.002 

EBMUD City Village Private 2025 0.015 0.038 

DSRSD Dublin Sports 
Grounds 

City of 
Dublin 2024 0.043 (a) 0.11 (a) 

DSRSD Butterfly Knoll Park City of 
Dublin 2024 0.004 (a) 0.01 (a) 

(a) Recycled water demand to be offset by water efficiency measures implemented by City of Dublin 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
INTERIM SUPPLY AGREEMENT

“Ready to Connect” Customers

July 1, 2024

Attachment 3



BACKGROUND

• March 2019 – DERWA requests member agencies implement 
connection moratorium

• March 2022 – Parties execute Interim Supply Agreement to 
formalize “pause period”

• March 2024 – DERWA completes Recycled Water Supply 
Management Plan



DERWA SUPPLY PLAN: NEAR-TERM STRATEGY

• “Ready to connect” customers – allow certain sites that can 
be served by existing infrastructure to be connected 

−Beyond this, new infrastructure is needed to connect new 
customers (5-10 years to construct)

• City recycled water budgets – could provide incentive for 
water use efficiency if water savings could be reallocated to 
new sites



NEAR-TERM SUPPLY AVAILABILITY

• Supply has increased due to 
growth in service area and 
metering improvements

• Use of storage basins to meet 
peak summer day demands

• Trend of lower recycled water 
demands due to weather and 
improved customer water use 
efficiency



DEMAND – 7 DAY AVERAGE

0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0

10.0

5/
1/

20
23

5/
15

/2
02

3
5/

29
/2

02
3

6/
12

/2
02

3
6/

26
/2

02
3

7/
10

/2
02

3
7/

24
/2

02
3

8/
7/

20
23

8/
21

/2
02

3
9/

4/
20

23
9/

18
/2

02
3

10
/2

/2
02

3
10

/1
6/

20
23

10
/3

0/
20

23
11

/1
3/

20
23

11
/2

7/
20

23
12

/1
1/

20
23

12
/2

5/
20

23
1/

8/
20

24
1/

22
/2

02
4

2/
5/

20
24

2/
19

/2
02

4
3/

4/
20

24
3/

18
/2

02
4

4/
1/

20
24

4/
15

/2
02

4
4/

29
/2

02
4

5/
13

/2
02

4
5/

27
/2

02
4D

em
an

d 
7-

D
ay

 A
ve

ra
ge

 (
M

G
)

Demand Total 7-day Average

Demand DERWA 7-day Average

Demand Pleasanton 7-day Average



PRODUCTION

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
G

2021 2022 2023 2024



PROPOSED 
“READY TO CONNECT” 

CUSTOMERS
• Customer sites that can be 

served by existing 
infrastructure

• Existing City of Dublin parks 
already plumbed to receive 
recycled water



PROPOSED
“READY TO CONNECT” CUSTOMERS

Member Agency Name Owner
Feasible 

Timing for 
Connection

Estimated 
Demand, 
Average 
(MGD)

Estimated 
Demand, 
Max Day 
(MGD)

EBMUD
Aspenwood 
Apartments

Private 2025 0.000 0.001

EBMUD
Belmont Village 
Senior Home

Private 2025 0.001 0.002

EBMUD City Village Private 2025 0.015 0.038

DSRSD
Dublin Sports 
Grounds

City of 
Dublin

2024 0.043 (a) 0.11 (a)

DSRSD
Butterfly Knoll 
Park

City of 
Dublin

2024 0.004 (a) 0.01 (a)

TOTAL 0.063 (a) 0.161 (a)

(a) Recycled water demand to be offset by water efficiency measures implemented by City of Dublin 



KEY AGREEMENT ISSUES

• Revise Section III. Connection Moratorium of Interim Agreement to 
allow member agencies to add “Ready to Connect” customers to 
recycled water system

• No conditions for connecting EBMUD recycled water customers

• Conditions for connecting DSRSD recycled water customers
− No adverse impact to existing DERWA customers
− DSRSD to take immediate corrective action to remedy supply 

deficiency if caused by addition of DSRSD “ready to connect 
customers”

− Prior to connection, DSRSD and Dublin shall execute agreement 
requiring Dublin to offset added demand through implementation of 
water efficiency measures

SECOND AMENDMENT KEY TERMS



• Authorize Authority Manager to negotiate and execute Second 
Amendment with member agencies

• DSRSD to execute agreement with City of Dublin

• DSRSD and EBMUD to proceed with “Ready to Connect” customers 
after execution of agreement

NEXT STEPS


	Board Agenda - 20240701
	Agenda Item 6.A - Minutes 20240422
	Agenda Item 7.A - Second Amendment to Iterim Agreement

